ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON O L AND GAS
March 30, 2007
8:30 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair
Representative Kurt A son, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Jay Ranras
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve John Coghill
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 177
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska @Gasline |nducenent Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act coordinator; naking conform ng anendnents; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 177

SHORT TI TLE: NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQIECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 05/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (H &G, RES, FIN

03/ 06/ 07 (H) 08G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 06/ 07 (H -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 08/ 07 (H) 08G AT 3:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 08/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 13/ 07 (H O8G AT 3:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 13/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2007



03/ 13/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 15/ 07 (H &G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 15/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 15/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 19/ 07 (H &G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 19/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 19/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 20/ 07 (H) 0%G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 20/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 20/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 21/ 07 (H O&G AT 5: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 21/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 21/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 22/ 07 (H) &G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 22/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 22/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 23/ 07 (H &G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TCL 106
03/ 23/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 23/ 07 (H) M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 24/ 07 (H) O8G AT 1: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 24/ 07 (H -- Public Testinony --

03/ 26/ 07 (H) &G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 26/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 26/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 27/ 07 (H) 0%G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 28/ 07 (H &G AT 7:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 28/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 28/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 28/ 07 (H &G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 28/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 28/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 29/ 07 (H &G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
03/ 29/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 29/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

03/ 30/ 07 (H &G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

PATRI CK GALVI N, Comm ssi oner

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed proposed anmendnents to HB 177 and
responded to questions.

DON BULLOCK, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel
Legi sl ati ve Legal and Research Services

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2007



Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the drafter of anmendnents to HB
177 and responded to questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR VIC KOHRING called the House Special Commttee on GOl and
Gas neeting to order at 8:30:57 AM Represent ati ves Sanuel s,
Doogan, Kawasaki, and Kohring were present at the call to order.
Representatives O son and Dahlstrom arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 177- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQJECT

8:31: 08 AM

CHAI R KOHRI NG announced that the sole order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 177, "An Act relating to the Al aska Gasline
| nducenent Act; establishing the Alaska Gasline I|nducenent Act
mat ching contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline
| nducenent Act coordinator; mnmaking conform ng anmendnents; and
providing for an effective date."

CHAI R KOHRI NG recessed the House Special Conmittee on G| and
Gas neeting to a call of the chair [for the purpose of waiting
for a conmttee substitute to be delivered to the conmttee].

8:44: 40 AM

CHAI R KOHRI NG reconvened the House Special Commttee on Ol and
Gas. Present at the reconvening were Representatives Dahl strom
Sanuel s, Doogan, Kawasaki, and Kohri ng. Representative 0 son
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

8:46: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 177, Version 25-GH1060\E, Bullock, 3/30/07, Version
E as a work draft.

8:46: 19 AM

CHAI R KOHRI NG obj ect ed.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN objected and explained that he does not
know the content of Version E well enough to adopt it as a work
draft.

[ There was di scussion regarding the correct procedure and it was
determned that a vote did not have to be taken; instead the
nmotion with the two objections was | eft pending.]

8:48: 07 AM

PATRI CK GALVIN, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
expl ai ned the changes made to HB 177 in Version E. He directed
the commttee's attention to page 2, lines 22-24, which reads in
part:

however, the state's contribution nmay
not exceed 50 percent of the qualified expenditures
incurred before the end of the first binding open
season ...

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said that the changes are to capture the

concept that the license applicant can suggest a state
contribution anbunt within the limts stated. On page 2, line
30 there is a |language change to "is incurred" from the previous
| anguage of "cost occurs."” The section on abandonment is now
Section 240 of the bill, and the nunbering has changed from the
original version. On page 3, lines 18 to 19, there is an added

cl ause allowi ng the conm ssioners to use "technical advisors" as
i ndependent contractors to assist in application devel opnent and
eval uati on.

8:52:39 AM

COM SSIONER  GALVIN continued to page 3, lines 22-24, and
expl ai ned that DOR had suggested inserting sonme restrictions on
appel | ate rights of t he partici pants by i ncor porating
limtations already in the state's procurenment code. However,
| egal counsel explained that |anguage in the state's procurenent
codes does not exactly match that in HB 177. Therefore, the

provi sion provides the comm ssioners the authority to adopt
regul ations regarding appeal rights substantially simlar to
those in the procurenment codes. He expl ained that changes on
page 4, lines 5-6, concern the requirenment that an applicant
provide for the receipt and delivery point of gas before an open
season has occurred. He said the applicant is not expected to
provide information as to in-state delivery points in the

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2007



license application. |In reference to page 4, lines 18 to 22, he
explained that in the original bill there was |anguage detailing
what the applicants nmust provide in terns of the tariff rates
and transportation services. He said there was |anguage in that
section concerning a liquefied natural gas (LNG project that
was intended to apply to a project in Canada or an LNG project.
He offered that the | anguage has been nodified on page 5, line 1
to clarify some of the requests made of an LNG applicant. In
response to a question, he said that the changes take the
concept of proposed transportation services and expand on it to
provi de additional clarity and application to both Canadian and
LNG proj ect s.

8:56: 43 AM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN went on to explain the changes on page 5,
lines 14 and 28. He said that the original bill had a 36 nonth
deadline in which to have an open season, the suggested
anendnent shortens that tinme to 24 nonths. He noted a change on
4, lines 1-2, which references a statute that prohibits an "over
the top route” as described in AS 38.35.017(b).

8:58:42 AM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that there are changes made to page 6,
line 9, to clarify that section wth respect to required
t echni cal i nformati on. Page 6, line 16, incorporates a
stylistic change that recognizes the normal sequence of events
with regard to gas pipeline conpression and pipe additions.
Moving on to page 7, line 18, he explained that the changes
require the applicant to describe how they propose to address a
North Sl ope gas treatnent plant, and rem nded the conmttee that
there is an inherent option for an applicant to propose a gas
treatment plant as part of their transportation system If an
applicant is to include a gas treatnment plant in its system it
woul d have to use the same debt to equity ratio required by the
state. On page 7, line 26 a reference is added to require an
applicant to propose not only a percentage, but a "total dollar
anount” of the state's contribution under AS 43.90.110(1). This
allows the state to exam ne what the applicant intends to spend
to arrive at an open season. He responded to a question by
explaining that DOR desires the applicants to at a mninmm
provi de an estimate of costs to be spent in preparation for open
season so that the state can have sone basis from which to gauge
the potential net present value of the project. He stated the
state would |like to gauge whether the applicant would have a

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2007



"breaking off point" depending upon the success of the open
season, and how nuch the state may have to spend, he expl ai ned
He responded to a further coment by indicating that DOR is
willing to discuss the need to place paraneters on the
applicant's ability to exceed their stated spending limt for
t hat phase of the project.

9: 03: 59 AM

COMM SSI ONER GALVI N explained that there is a possible error on
page 7, lines 27 and 28 which refers to AS 43.90.110(1) and (2)
and opined the reference should be to AS 43.90.110(1)(a) and
(b). He stated that the intent of this change was to reference
the 50 percent contribution up to open season and the post-open
season sections of the bill.

9: 05: 31 AM

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N referred to three new subsections on page 8,
whi ch read [original punctuation nodified slightly for clarity]:

...(16) waive the right to appeal the award
to another applicant or the determ nation under
AS 43.90. 180(b) t hat no application nerits the
i ssuance of a |icense;

(17) comm t to negotiate, pri or to
construction, a project |abor agreenment, to assure
expedited construction and |abor stability for the
project by qualified residents of the state;

(18) commt that the state contribution
received by the licensee may not be included in the
applicant's rate base and shall be used as a credit
agai nst the |licensee's cost of service;

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N explained that the intent of section 16 is
to require an applicant to waive their right to appeal an
adverse deci sion. Section 17 was suggested by DOR and is
intended to require applicants to set forth that they wll
commit to negotiate project |abor agreenents.

CHAIR KOHRI NG suggested that proposed section 17 mght be a
poi nt of contention by sone nenbers of the conmittee, but noted
its addition allows the commttee to consider it.

9:07:31 AM

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the term "project | abor
agreenent” has a generally accepted neaning, or whether the
phrase can have a range of neani ngs.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said he was unaware of whether there was a
specified neaning to the aforenentioned term He went on to
explain that section 18, |ine 23 is a technical change to
confirm that any state contribution to the project would be
deducted fromthe rate base.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N explained that Version E contains changes
suggested by DOR, by the chair and by legislative |egal counsel.
He directed the commttee's attention to page 9, section 150
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 43.90.150. Proprietary information and trade
secrets. (a) At the request of the applicant
information submtted wunder this chapter that the
applicant identifies and denonstrates is proprietary
or is a trade secret is confidential and not subject
to public disclosure under AS 40.25 unless the
applicant is granted a license under this chapter;

after a license is awarded, all information submtted
by the licensee under this chapter shall be nade
publi c.

(b) If the conmi ssioners deternmine that the
information submitted by the applicant is not

proprietary or is a trade secret, the conm ssioners
shall notify the applicant and return the information
at the request of the applicant.

(c) An applicant that protests or appeals the
award of a license or the process by which the award
of a license is nmade shall be considered to have
consented to the disclosure of all of the information
submtted under this chapter by the applicant naking

the protest or appeal, including information that is
confidential under (a) of this section.
(d) In this section, "proprietary" nmeans that

the information is treated by the applicant as
confidenti al and the public disclosure of that
information would adversely affect the conpetitive
position of the applicant, or materially dimnish the
comercial value of the information to the applicant.

COMWM SSI ONER GALVIN explained that this section covers the
treatment of an applicant's confidential information. The

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -7- March 30, 2007



section is designed to capture the concept that once a |icense
has been issued, all information is public.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if whether the |egislature would be
aware that there was infornmation that it did not have access to
when revi ewi ng t he conmmi ssi oners’ i cense I ssuance
recomrendat i on.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N answered yes, and noted that the applicant
must provide a public summary of the information it desires be
considered confidential. He explained in response to a question
that the sort of information that may be confidential could
include the potential nmethods that ©pipeline conpanies nmay
propose wth others to share risks between thenselves and the
shi ppers.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed concern that keeping sone
information confidential will nmake it difficult for the public
at large to evaluate the adequacy of the selection process.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN stated that there would likely not be much
confidential information relevant to the actual value of the gas

pipeline project to the state. He opined that nost of the
information likely to be in the confidential arena is
information that weighs nore on the |I|ikelihood of project
success.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN sai d that throughout these hearings people
have been using "risk"™ as a code word for how nuch noney they
are going to have to pay. He asked whether the anount a shi pper
woul d have to pay would be part of eval uation process.

COM SSIONER  GALVIN opined that the issue of risk is a
conbi nati on of how nuch an applicant is going to have to pay,

and the Ilevel of wuncertainty the applicant nust bear. He
suggested that the level of information that will be avail able
to the public will provide a "clear band" around the range of
criteria. He set forth that DOR is attenpting to craft a
procedure that is as transparent as possible and has very few
confidenti al aspects. He relayed that the confidentia

i nformati on would not be the driving factor in the |license award
deci si on.

9:22: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = SAMJELS asked  about the situation where
confidenti al information sets forth a proposal that the

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 8- March 30, 2007



applicant eventually does not enact and questioned whether that
i nformati on woul d ever becone public know edge.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that under the current proposal
any information that was confidential would be nmade public as
soon as the legislature approved of the |icense issuance.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed his concern that under the
current proposal, only the successful applicant's information is
made public while the information in the unsuccessful
applications remains confidential.

COM SSIONER CGALVIN replied that the intent is not to draw

di stinctions between public and non-public information. He
offered that the bid paraneters of an unsuccessful applicant are
not normally nade public. He stated that the bill attenpts to

be sensitive to normal business dynamcs, and noted that a
chall enger to the license award would also have its information
made public.

COMWM SSIONER  GALVIN explained that the intent behind the
application evaluation and ranking criteria, AS 43.90.170, is to
provi de nore structure to the determi nation of which application

provides the nbst net present value to the state and the
greatest |ikelihood of success.

9:30:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked about the neaning of the section on
page 11, line 16 which reads [original punctuation provided]:

(d) In this section, "net present value" neans the
di scounted value of a future stream of cash flow ...

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N suggested this section be addressed by the
DOR s economi sts.

9:32: 53 AM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN revi ewed proposed AS 43.90.180 which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 43.90.180. Notice to the legislature of intent to

issue license; denial of license. (a) If, after evaluation
of conpl ete appl i cations under AS 43.90. 170 and
consi deration of public coment s recei ved under
AS 43. 90. 160, the commssioners and the coordinator

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -9- March 30, 2007



determ ne that an application proposes a project that wll
sufficiently maximze the benefits to the people of this
state and nerits issuance of a license, the conm ssioners
shal |

(1) issue a determnation, with witten findings
addr essi ng t he basi s for t he determ nati on; t he
determ nati on becones a final agency action in accordance
with AS 43.90.190;

(2) publish a notice of intent to issue a
license that includes findings addressing the basis for the
determ nation; and

(3) submt the determnation along wth the
findings, supporting docunmentation, and a copy of the
noti ce published under (2) of this subsection to the chairs
of the legislative standing committees having jurisdiction

over nat ur al resources for action as provided in
AS 43.90. 190.
(b) | f the conm ssioners determne that no

application proposes a project that sufficiently maxim zes
the benefits to the people of this state and nerits
issuance of a license, the commissioners shall 1issue a
witten notice of that determnation and the findings on
which the determ nation is based.

(c) The comm ssioners' determnation under this (b)
of this section is a final agency action for purposes of
appeal to the superior court.

(d) Wthin 90 days after a determ nation under (b) of
this section, the comm ssioners nay issue a new request for
applications for a license under AS 43.90. 120.

COM SSIONER GALVIN noted there is a reference within the
evaluation criteria which references the section on public
comment . He went on to say that the next area wth a
substantive change is on page 12, line 11 which reads [origina

punct uation provided]:

Sec. 43.90.190. Legislative approval; issuance of
license. (a) After receiving a determnation from the
conm ssioners under AS 43.90.180, the House standing
cormittee and the Senate standing commttee having
jurisdiction over natural resources shall introduce a
bill in their respective chanbers that provides for
the approval of the license proposed to be issued by
t he conm ssi oners.

(b) If a bill approving the issuance of the
i cense becones |aw, the comm ssioners shall issue the
license as soon as practicable after the effective

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 10- March 30, 2007



date of the Act approving the issuance of the |icense.
The issuance of the |icense approved by the
legislature is a final admnistrative action on the
date the license is issued for purposes of appeal to
t he superior court.

(c) If the legislature fails to approve the
i ssuance of the license, the comm ssioners may request
new applications for a |icense under AS 43.90.120.

9:35:10 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN explained that this provision was at the
request of the commttee chair and requires approval of the
i ssuance of the licenses in the formof a bill.

CHAIR KOHRING set forth that nothing in the aforenentioned
section is "rock solid,"” but just sonething for consideration.

9: 36: 36 AM

COW SSI ONER GALVI N referred to page 11, line 21, which proposes
that the Alaska Gasline Inducenment Act (AG A) coordinator be
added to the review process. In response to a question, he
noted that the timng of the hiring of the AQd A coordinator
still needs to be eval uated.

CHAI R KOHRI NG set forth there needs to be a procedure if the two
commi ssi oners cannot agree.

COMM SSI ONER GALVI N expressed confidence that the governor wll
make decision should the comm ssioners be unable to cone to a
uni fi ed deci si on.

9:38:21 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N noted that | anguage on page 12, |ines 25-26,
is intended to clarify that the obligation to take certification
either from Federal Energy Regulatory Comm ssion (FERC) or the
Regul atory Commission of Alaska (RCA) does not becone an
obligation until after all the adm nistrative appeal rights have
been exhausted by the applicant.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N expl ai ned that changes on page 13, lines 19-
20 clarify when the tinme starts to run for purposes of appeal
Changes on page 13, |lines 27-28 set forth that [original
punct uati on provided]:

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -11- March 30, 2007



. An amendnent or nodification approved under
this section nust be consistent with the requirenents
in AS 43.90.130 and may not dimnish the value to the
state of the project or the like likelihood of success
for the project.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN summari zed that the aforenentioned section
is to ensure that the project value or |ikelihood of success is
not dimnished if the project terns are nodified.

9:41: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked about the situation where a
nodi ficati on decreases the value to the state, but increases the
I'i kel i hood of project success.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N opined that such a nodification should not
be al | owed.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked about the criteria which determ ne
when the value to the state i s di m ni shed.

COWMWM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that decisions on nodifications
are intended to be referenced back to the initial evaluation
criteria, therefore would use the sane criteria as in the
initial evaluation process.

9:42: 54 AM

COM SSIONER GALVIN said that technical changes made to AS
43.90.210 are designed to clarify that the scope of the
comm ssioners' ability to require the production of information
is related only to the license procedures of AGA He explained
that nodifications on page 15, |ine 23, concern renedies
available to the conm ssioners if a licensee has violated the
license terms. One renedy is to allow the state to acquire the

wor k product from the I|icensee. In other simlar sections of
the bill, language has been clarified to make clear that only
the work product developed during the |license period is

available to the state. He explained that AS 43.90.240 covers
the procedure for abandonnent of the project and contains sone
nodi fications suggested by DOR regarding the process of
arbitration. He said the DOR is continuing to craft |anguage
defining the term "uneconomc.” |If the project is determned to

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -12- March 30, 2007



be uneconomic, the state could acquire the work product at the
applicant's net cost, he explai ned.

9:48: 06 AM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that AS 43.90.250 covers the position
of AQ A coordinator and has been nodified at the request of the
chair to place the position in the governor's office, to clarify
the appoi nt nent process, and to further delineate the
responsibilities of the position. The AG A coordinator is
subject to legislative confirmation and to reconfirmation after
a gubernatorial election.

9:50: 29 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN set forth that AS 43.90.260 has been noved
fromArticle 3, but has not been changed. He said that all the
upstream i nducenents in Article 3 of HB 177 have been nodified
to make it clear that they are all contractual in nature. The

| anguage on page 18, lines 12 and 13 which states the
i nducenment[s] in AS 43.90.310 and 43.90.320 are contractual"”
provides a clear statement of that intent, he indicated. AS

43.90. 310 covers the royalty inducenment provisions of AQA He
said that 43.90.310(c) consists nostly of new |anguage that is
intended to create a contractual relationship. He offered that
the intent of this section is to have a regulatory nethod to
establish valuation for purposes of wupstream determ nations.
The applicant wll have the option to have that alternate
net hodol ogy put into their contract, he explained. Although the
regul ati ons may change to update the nmethod used, each tine the

| essee wll have the option as to whether to change its |ease
terns.
9:54:18 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N expl ai ned that |anguage was added on page
20, line 27 authorizing the conmssioner of DOR to sign a
certificate regarding the proposed production tax exenption. He
di sclosed that legislative |legal counsel does not support this
approach because of concerns regarding its constitutionality.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:55:57 AMto 9:56: 01 AM

CHAI R KOHRI NG recessed the House Special Conmittee on G| and
Gas neeting at a call of the chair at 9:56:49 AM

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 13- March 30, 2007



[ The notion to adopt Version E as a work draft was |eft pending
wi th objections by Chair Kohring and Representative Doogan. ]

12: 36: 07 PM

CHAI R KOHRI NG reconvened the House Special Commttee on Ol and
Gas neeting. Present at the reconvening were Representatives
Sanuel s, Doogan, Kawasaki, O son, and Kohring. Representative
Dahl strom arrived as t he neeting was in pr ogr ess.
Representative Coghill was also in attendance.

12: 36: 34 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN reviewed Article 4, page 21, lines 16 to 18
whi ch reads [original punctuation provided]:

Money appropriated to the fund may be spent for
t he pur poses of t he fund wi t hout further
appropriation. Appropriations to the fund do not |apse
under AS 37.25.010, but remain in the fund for future
di sbursenents. Nothing in this subsection creates a
dedi cated fund ...

and explained the nodifications were suggested by |egislative
| egal counsel. Furthernore, changes were nmade to proposed AS
43.90.410 because the existing admnistrative code is not
designed to allow two conmissioners to jointly adopt
regul ations. The proposal allows the comm ssioner of revenue to
adopt the regulations for decisions nmde jointly by the
comm ssioners of Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and DOR
he explained. The clause "before the commencenent of conmerci al
operations” clarifies the cut-off for when the assurance that
the state wll not provide benefits to a conpeting project
expires, and is added on page 22, line 16. The intent is to add
a "stay faithful"™ clause to the deal which ends once the gas
pi peline begins operations, he explained. A definition of
conpeting project is added on page 22, line 30, and states
[original punctuation provided]:

(b) In this section, "conpeting natural gas
project” nmeans a project designed to accommobdate
t hroughput of nore than 500,000,000 cubic feet of
North Sl ope gas a day.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN explained that this provision is to allow

for in-state gas volunmes to proceed wi thout violating the nature
of the "faithful" clause. He went on to explain that on page

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -14- March 30, 2007



23, line 7, the phrase "dimnish the |ikelihood of success" was
added as a factor to consider when determining whether a
|icensee can assign its license. There is also a change on page
23, line 21 to make clear that any job training program need not
be limted to jobs on the gas pipeline project, but can include
rel ated vocational training. A definition of "North Slope" was

added on page 24, line 30 and 31. Further changes in
definitions include the addition of the word "financial" before
comm tnents on page 25, lines 13 and 14. A conform ng anmendnent
was nade on page 25, line 3. Further |anguage on page 27, |ine

22, concerns | anguage added by counsel regarding confidentiality
and reads [original punctuation provided]:

(12) records that are

(A) proprietary or a trade secret in
accordance with AS 43.90. 150;

(B) applications that are received under
AS 43.90.120 - 43.90.140 wuntil notice is published

under AS 43. 90. 160.

12:44: 53 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN further noted that Section 5, page 27 sets
forth the legislative intent that the first request for |icense
applications be issued within 90 days after the effective date
of AGQA a requirenent that was previously set forth as a
mandat ory requirenent. He explained that a severability clause
regardi ng the upstream tax inducenment provisions was inserted to
insure that even if the production tax exenption was found to be
unconstitutional, the remai nder of AGA would still be valid.

The commttee took at ease from 12:48 to 12: 52.

12:53:21 PM

DON BULLOCK, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, said
the structure of AG A remains basically the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked about the change regarding the
anount of noney the state would match up to open season, noting
it went from 80 percent to 50 percent. [ Version E, page 2,
lines 22 to 24.]

MR. BULLOCK explained that prior |anguage provided that the
state would match contributions made by the licensee equally up

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -15- March 30, 2007



until the end of the first binding open season, but it was not
cl ear whether there would be any funds left at the end of open
season. Under the revision, the applicant will put forth the
anount of matching funds they propose to receive in the first
period, with the limtation it not exceed 50 percent of the
qualified expenditures incurred before the end of the first
bi ndi ng open season.

12:55: 59 PM

MR. BULLOCK explained that in AGQA "North Slope" is defined as
North of 68 degrees North |atitude, whereas federal law relating
to the natural gas act uses a marker of North of 64 degrees
North latitude. He noted that there are constitutional issues
regarding the separation of executive and |egislative powers
relating to contract approval and regarding the confirmation of
the AG A coordinator. He relayed that the courts have narrowy
construed provisions regarding the ability of the legislature to

appoi nt comm ssi oners. He noted that the AGQ A coordinator
position "does not fit easily" into the constitutional
provisions that provide for legislative confirnmations. He

rem nded the commttee of his earlier testinony that the 10 year
tax exenption was likely to be constitutional because it was a
matter of general |aw, subject to future |egislative change.

12:58: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN  asked if t he problem wth t he
constitutionality of the confirmation of the AQ A coordi nator
would be lessened if confirmation was only for the initial
appoi nt nent .

MR. BULLOCCK replied that was not the issue, rather the issue is
whether the confirmation is required at all. The Ad A
coordi nator position is to be in the governor's office.

12:59:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the constitutional issue changes
if the tax exenption is based on the volunme of gas rather than
period of tine.

MR. BULLOCK replied that it could be. He noted that the Al aska
State Constitution, Article IX, Section 1, and Article 11X
Section 4 appear to allow the legislature to enact sone tax
exenptions by general |aw.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 16- March 30, 2007



1: 01: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN reiterated his question as to whether an
exenption based on volume is nore likely to wthstand
constitutional scrutiny than one based on tine.

MR. BULLOCK replied that a period of tine would deal with how
long the legislature wanted to allow the exenption. He offered
that an exenption if different than credit because an exenption
states the taxpayer is not subject to tax, while a credit states
that a calculated tax will be reduced.

1: 02: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked about drafting the contracts to
provide flexible royalty rates which would increase or decrease
in conjunction with other tax issues.

MR. BULLOCK noted that a royalty is not a tax, but a share of
ownership and that share is negotiated at the tinme of the |ease.
He noted that while there nay be sone changes to the royalty
provisions in the state | eases, which the | essee may seek to add
to the |ease. Change would be considered a revision of the
| ease and be a new contract, he expl ai ned.

1: 05:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked about the ability to incorporate a
flexible royalty rate to balance a possible rise in taxes and
the possibility that such an approach would be less likely to be
unconstitutional.

MR. BULLOCK replied that royalty terns are contractual terns
that are negotiated between the parties. He indicated the |ease
could have a reference to any neasure that would adjust for the

| ease anounts. He noted that the royalty provisions tax the
activity of producing oil and gas, neasured by the val ue. He
rem nded the conmttee that the state only gets a portion of
royalties from federal land as it is not an owner on those
| ands.

1:07:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whether there is a benefit to
i ncluding inducenents as contractual royalty ternms within the
| ease instead of structuring inducenments as a production tax
exenption that may face a constitutional chall enge.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -17- March 30, 2007



1: 08: 38 PM

MR. BULLOCK agreed with the aforenentioned point. He went on to
say that since the state is constitutionally required to be a
good steward of its natural resources, there is a perception

t hat royalty incentives <could be inconsistent wth the
stewardship responsibilities. He opined that "royalties would
definitely be safer.” He remnded the conmttee that there are

constitutional provisions which restrict the inpairnment of
contractual terns.

1: 09: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if Ilowering the state's royalty
share in current contracts would be considered an inpairnent of
contractual terns.

MR. BULLOCK stated he was not sure, noting that in the
af orenenti oned exanple, the state's interests would be inpaired.

MR. BULLOCK expl ai ned that the | ease abandonnment provisions have
been noved to be within a nore appropriate place within the
structure of the bill. He referred to AS 43.90.110 on
i nducenents as "where that 50 percent cap cones in." He went
noted that in Version E the state takes the position as
coordi nator of vocational training, noting that there is also a
new section regarding the devel opnent of a training program He
expl ai ned that a change in AS 43.90.110 requires the
conmm ssioner of DOR to consult with the comm ssioner of DNR to
adopt regulations to enhance the definition of qualified
expenditures for purposes of the state's matching contribution

O her changes include sone re-nunbering because the abandonnent
provisions of the bill were noved to another section of the
bill. He opined that there were legal problenms with the prior
requirement that the commi ssioners issue a request for
application for the license within 90 days of the effective date
of the act. To renedy this, this section was changed to
indicate that the commssioners nust do it "as soon as
practical." He said there is an un-codified section at the end
of the bill setting forth that |egislative intent is that the
comm ssioners act within 90 days of the effective date of the
act .

1:12: 27 PM

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 18- March 30, 2007



MR. BULLOCK explained that there was sonme desire to use the
exi sting state procurenent code provisions to award the |icense

and govern appeals. However, he explained that there are a
nunber of terms in the procurenent codes that would be difficult
to apply to the gas pipeline project. Therefore, he suggested

that the conmm ssioners are required to adopt regulations
substantially simlar to those in the existing state procurenent
codes. AS 43.90.130 has been nodified to be nore affirmative in
that the applicant is making the commtnents listed in the
application, he explained. The "over the top route" through the
Beaufort Sea and down through the MKenzie, has specifically
been excluded, he said. He said this exclusion still |eaves
room for highway routes and an in-state route to tidewater. He
explained that the tinme period for arriving at the end of open
season is shortened from 36 nonths to 24 nonths. He i ndicated
this a target date, which requires the licensee to nove a bit
faster.

CHAI R KOHRI NG noted that he had suggested this change with the
intent to nove things up a bit.

MR. BULLOCK stated that there is flexibility to change the |aw
if it becones apparent that the suggested tine periods are
probl emati c. He noted that changes had been made to recognize
that expansion would |ikely first involve conpression, and then
pi peline | ooping |ater.

1:16: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if the tinme period would be in the
contract, which the |l egislature could not change.

MR. BULLOCK opined that the applicant has the option to conplete
the work under the time period set as well as the flexibility to
request nore tinmne.

1:17: 45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the statute and the contract
woul d have to be changed if the |icensee needs a longer tine

period than 24 nont hs.

MR. BULLOCK agreed that the terms of the law would have to be

changed to grant the |icensee additional tine. He put forth
that there is a requirenent that the applicant conmt not to
protest the award of the license to another applicant, or a

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -19- March 30, 2007



determi nation by the conm ssioners not to issue a |license to any
appl i cant.

1:19: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the term "project | abor
agreenent™ in AS 43.90.130(17) has legally defined nmeani ng.

MR. BULLOCK said that the term is not defined in Al aska
statutes, but that there is a case where a project |[abor
agreenment was upheld. He recalled that in a footnote, the court

set forth a definition for the term He stated it is a
contractual provision whereby |aborers are identified and agree
not to strike in return for the benefits of the contract. He

said that project |abor agreenents raise some "right to work"
constitutional issues, but that an Alaska Suprene Court case
affirmed the use of a project |abor agreenent in a case from

Fai r banks. In response to a question, he explained that the
Fai rbanks case has sone differences as it involved public nonies
for a public contract. The gas pipeline situation involves

public noney going to develop a project, and he has not
researched the possible effect of these differences on the
court's holding as applied to the project |[|abor agreenent
section of Ad A

1:21: 32 PM

MR, BULLOCK reviewed section 43.90. 140 regardi ng the appoi nt ment
of an AG A coordinator and stated the intent was to add a third
person to the decision maki ng process.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN set forth that his expectation is that the
governor wll be the ultimte decision nmaker, and asked whether
it is possible to structure AGA so the conmm ssioners nake a
recommendation, but the governor mnekes the actual decision of
who to award the |icense to.

1:22: 52 PM

MR. BULLOCK indicated there is no |egal reason not to proceed as
stated in the aforenentioned nethod, but noted that there is
sone separation of powers issues, although the comm ssioners do
wor k for the governor.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN opi ned that since the governor is elected
and wll likely be the one actually naking the fina

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 20- March 30, 2007



determ nation, it may be preferable to state explicitly that the
governor mekes the final decision.

MR. BULLOCK stated Version E nmakes sets forth that the
conmmi ssioners are entitled to seek additional information from
applicants related only to the application itself. AS 43.90.150
concerns information the applicant wi shes to keep confidential

and includes a definition of "proprietary." The comm ssioners
make the determnation and can require a summary of the
i nformation. Upon appeal, an applicant's information is no
| onger confidential, he explained. AS 43.90.160 covers noti ce,
review, and coment by the public and relates to all the
applications the comm ssioners have reviewed and found
accept abl e. He stated the work of Representative Dahlstrom s

conmmittee is reflected in AS 43.90.170 so as to nmke the
criteria for review nore directed as to what the state can

expect from the project. He opined that this approach brings
back the focus that the greatest benefit will be at the well-
head val ue. He opined that the criteria have been crafted to

determ ne how capable the applicant is and how likely it is the
applicant will be able to build the pipeline. He offered his
belief that this section is one of the nobst inportant pieces of
the bill as it gives the conm ssioners the basis on which to
revi ew applications to make a recomrendati on.

1:28:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked about the definition of "net
present value" as the "discounted value of a future stream of
cash flow' on page 11, line 16-17. He opined that his
inclination is to set specific nunbers as the current definition
may be sonewhat subjective.

MR. BULLOCK replied that he thinks it is reasonable, noting
there are presunptions nmade to the net present value cal cul ation
and perhaps this is the appropriate place to do it. He
suggested that the conm ssioners could approach this through
regul ation, which can be nore responsive to change than
paraneters set in statute

1: 30: 10 PM

MR. BULLOCK reviewed AS 43.90. 180 which sets forth the procedure
for legislative approval of the comm ssioners' reconmmendation.
The process for |egislative approval set forth in AS 43.90.190
is that the chairs of the conmttees that received the bills
will introduce a bill to approve the issuance of the |icense

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -21- March 30, 2007



This is a change fromthe original bill which was set up so that

if the legislature did nothing, the license would be issued.
Version E requires the legislature to consider and a pass a bill
for the license to be issued. He suggested this resolves sone
of the timng issues in the original bill, because as a bill, it

woul d carry over into the next |egislative session.
1:33: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked about the procedure if the bill did
not pass in regular session, but there was a special session.
He queried whether the bill would be taken up from the | ast
conmmittee of referral, or whether it would have to "go back to
square one."

MR. BULLOCK replied that new bills are introduced in specia
sessi on. He opined that there is flexibility in the rules, but
in general new bills are introduced in special session.

1:34:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked why the request for a bil
approving the license would not just be given to the House and
Senate standing rules commttees, referring to page 12, |ine 13.

MR. BULLOCK answered that it could be set up that way, noting
that other commttees can request bills introduced to the rules
commi ttees.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if it was possible to increase the
time limts, or set forth a calendar day limt to accommbdate
possi bl e scenari os.

MR, BULLOCK replied that a cal endar day approach was possible,
but opined that there is flexibility in the legislative

organi zation now to manage the bill. He opined that the "day
requi renent" raises problens as to when the |egislature receives
the bill relative to the end of the session.

1:36:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS expressed concern that the political
dynamic could slow down approval of the bill. He i ndicated
there should be sonme sort of deadline for a vote.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN set forth that his understanding that once
the bill for approval is introduced, it would not be until after

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE -22- March 30, 2007



the next election and a new legislative session that one could
definitively say the legislature failed to adopt the bill.

MR. BULLOCK agreed with the aforenmentioned statenment, noting
that the bill "would be dead" if not passed by the end of the
second legislative session after introduction. The bill could
al so not pass by being voted down, he noted. He indicated that
this provision contenplates that the legislature reviews the
conmmi ssioners' determnation that the recommended project is the
one that maxim zes benefit to the state. AS 43.90. 200 covers
certification by regulatory agencies and requires the licensee
accept the certificate issued by the regulatory agency only
after all rights relating to appeal are expired.

1:40: 19 PM

MR. BULLOCK went on to say that a financial conmmtment is
required, opining that the intent is to make sure the |icensee
is making a firmcommtnent to go forward with the project. AS
43. 90. 210 concerns anendnents or nodifications to the project
plan and adds that any changes may not "dimnish the value to
the state of the project of the likelihood of success for the
project."

1:41: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS referred to a past failed refinery
project in 1980 which resulted in a state debt of around $70 to
$80 mllion. He expressed concern that the nodification terns
as set forth in the statute are subjective terns which wll
require negotiation and indicated his desire for assurances that
a nodification will not result in project failure.

MR, BULLOCK indicated he could not offer that assurance through
a specific provision, but said that the section of the bill on
ranking and criteria offers a systemto really test the projects
viability. Furthernore, the conm ssioners have the ability to
request further information. He noted that if sonething
occurred to put the project's economc viability in jeopardy,
there are provisions in the nodification section of the bill to
allow the state to consider ways to sal vage the project.

1:43: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noted nodification would occur after the
| icense was issued, and without |egislative review

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 23- March 30, 2007



MR. BULLOCK suggested that a provision could be added to require
| egi slative review of substantial nodifications to the contract
terns.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN opined that |Ilanguage in AS 43.90.210
regarding likelihood of success does not necessarily mean a "net
present value" calculation as contenplated under AS 43.90.170.
He opined that as witten, Section 210 would include
consideration of non-nonetary val ue. He suggested that
nodi fying this provision to nmean "net present value" nmay tighten
it up sonmewhat .

MR. BULLOCK agreed that a "best interest" concept can include
many factors, noting the legislature my structure such
provi sions to enphasi ze factors it considers nost inportant.

1:46: 57 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN suggested that the criteria to determ ne
whether a nodification should be allowed be the sane criteria

used to nmake the initial |icense award.

MR. BULLOCK suggested the nodification section could refer to
the initial criteria section. He explained that AS 43.90.220

provides the state the ability to account for funds spent. The
| anguage recognizes that parties besides the I|icensee may be
maki ng the expenditures. He said that it is still unclear as to

how the state's contribution of $500 mllion is to be paid as a
mat ching contribution, or as reinbursement to the licensee for

funds spent. AS 43.90.230 provides that the comm ssioners
determ ne, through admnistrative hearing, whether there has
been a license violation and a cure thereof. Pr oj ect

abandonment is covered by AS 43.90.240 and is based on a finding
that the project is uneconom c. Version E incorporates use of
an arbitrator from the American Arbitration Association to
determine whether the project is indeed uneconomn c. That
determnation is then filed in the court, he explai ned.

1: 51: 29 PM
CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whet her "uneconomic" is defined in the bill.

MR. BULLOCK replied that this determ nation comes back to the

val ue and expected rate of return for the project. He noted
that the tariff will have a rate of return built in to it, but
opined it will not nmean nmuch if there is an insufficient volune
of gas.

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 24- March 30, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noted that economc evaluations nmay
di ffer between conpani es based on differing business focuses.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if this determnation was limted to
the econom cs of project itself.

MR. BULLOCK replied that the project itself and its benefits to
the state intertwi ne because of policy decisions nmade in the
determ nation of the license award. He said there is nothing in
HB 177 that precludes devel opnment of another project should the
first licensee abandon its project.

1:58: 44 PM

MR. BULLOCK reviewed the inducenent sections of the bill, noting
that they are intended to be contractual. He explained that DNR
will determne how the royalty provisions will work.

1:59: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked about the possible constitutiona
problems with AS 43.90.320, the gas production tax exenption
secti on.

MR. BULLOCK opined that the tax exenption approach in Section
320 definitely raises a constitutional issue under Section |IX of

the Alaska State Constitution. He offered that putting a
taxation provision in the ~contract <could bring up the
constitutional provision against inpairnent of contracts. He
said it is a matter of opinion as to how a court wll rule, but

opi ned that the court would not |ook favorably upon contracting
away the power to tax. He noted that the Al aska Constitution is
crafted to allow the legislature to have considerable financia
flexibility. He noted that there is a desire to give fiscal
certainty to business interests, and that the ultimte decision-
maker may be the courts.

2: 05: 24 PM

VR. BULLOCK explained that Article 4 of AGA concerns
m scel | aneous provisions. He explained that under AS 43.90. 400,
once the mtching contribution anounts are appropriated, they

will not |apse, but will be available to the comm ssioners in a
non- dedi cated fund. Under Article 4, the state assures the
licensee it wll not extend favorable treatnment to another
party. Li cense transfers are allowed in certain conditions as

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 25- March 30, 2007



set forth in AS 43.90.450. He enphasized that a transfer of the
production tax exenption nust also include whatever commtted
capacity that transferor has in the pipeline, referring to page
17, lines 13-17. He explained that Section 5 on page 27
expresses the statutory intent that the conm ssioners issue a
request for applications wthin 90 days after passage of AdA.
He said that a severability clause is included, although courts
recogni ze the concept of severability even without a specific
provision in the statute.

CHAIR KOHRING said that HB 177 would be held in commttee.
[ Representative Dahlstromis notion to adopt Version E as a work
draft was carried over for consideration at the next neeting.]

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Ol and Gas neeting was adjourned at 2:15
p. m

HOUSE C&G COW TTEE - 26- March 30, 2007



